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Management's Statement of Responsibility
for Financial Reporting

The consolidated financial statements of the UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company
{the "Group"} have been prepared by the management of the Group, which is responsible for
the substance and objectivity of the information contained therain,

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for. selecting
appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently, develoeping assurmplions
and estimatas thal are reasonable and prudent; stating whether IFRS have been followsd,
subject o any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue its business for the foreseeable future,

The management is also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining an
effective and sound system of internal controls across the Group, maintaining proper
accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position
of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Group
comply with IFRS. maintaining accounting records in compliance with local legislation and
accounting standards in the respective jurisdictions in which the Group cperates; taking steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group, and preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities. In deoing so, the Group established the audit committes within the Supervizory
Board with the aim to increase the effzctivensss of the internal confrols and improve the
corporate government practices.

The managamaent of the Group conducts business in the interests of the sharehelders and in
awarzness of its responsibilities toward employees, communities and the environment in all
the regicns in which the Groeup operates. Among the management's pricrities is increasing the
effectiveness of the aviation business, profitability of the Group and therefore wealth of the
shareholders,

A Z Marlirosoy Genearal Directar

OV, Graberovskaya ol Chief Accountant
11 Decemibzer 2008 . A
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Independent Aunditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of UTair Aviation Joint-
stock Company {the “Company™} and its subsidiaries (the “Group™), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the yvear
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Mamagement s Responsibifity for che Consolidared Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prescntation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reponing Standards. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Auditors ' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. Except as described in the fourth paragraph of the Basis of Qualified Opinion, we
conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 10
obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consclidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
awditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the awditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the entity's internal control. An audit also incledes evalvating the
appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonahleness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

There are indications that the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment might be
lower than its carrying amount stated at US$749.016 thouwsand. International Financial
Reporting Standard 1AS 36 fmpairment of Assels requires that where such indications exist,
management makes a formal estimate of the recoverable amounts. No such estimate has been
made. The effects of this departere from International Financial Reporting Standards on the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the vear ended 31 December 2008 has not been
determined.

The Group has nol carried out a purchase price allocation in relation to its acquisition of
Aviacion del Sur S5.A, presented in MNote 7, as required by International Financial Reporting
Standard IFRS 3 Susiness Combinations, but has consolidated the subsidiary on the basis of
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the acquiree's Onancial statements. The effect of
this departure from International Financial Reporting Standards as at and for the vear ended
31 December 2008 has not been determined

The Group’s associates, Airport Surgut OJS5C and Kondaavia CISC, referred to in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements, carry certain items of property, plant and equipment,
which should be stated at revalued amounts in accordance with the Group's aceounting policy,
at cost. The Group has not adjusted the associates’ accounts when applying the equity method of
accounting to conform the associates” accounting policy 1o those of the Group as required by
Imernational Financial Reporting Standard 1AS 28 fnvestments in Associates, The effect of this
departure from International Financial Reporting Standards on the comsolidated financial
slatements a5 at and for the year ended 31 December 2008 has not been determined,

The Group has not disclosed the name of its ultimate controlling party, if any. It was
impracticable to satisly ourselves as to whether there was an ultimate controlling party and
therefore whether such disclosure is required. Accordingly, we were unable to determine
whether the disclosure of related party cutstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and related
party transactions for the yvear then ended, which are required to be disclosed by International
Financial Reporting Standard [AS 24 Related Parry Discloswres, are complete.

Chealified Cpinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the first, second and third
paragraphs of the Basis of Qualified Opinion, and except for the omission of disclosure
described in the Tourth paragraph of the Basis of Qualified Opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2008, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year them ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards,
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Chthier Moatters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the vear ended 31 December
2007 were audited by other awditors whose report dated 25 Aupust 2008 expressed a qualified
opinion on those statements because the Group did not disclose the name of its ultimate
controlling party and because of the matter described in the third paragraph of the Basis of
Crualified Opinion.

240 Khug

ZAO KPMG
] December 2004



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008
{in thousands of US dollars)

ASSETS

Mon-current assets

Goadwill

Froperly, plant and egquipment
Intengible assels

Met invesiment in leases
Inweslmands in associatas
Inwestments avalable-for-sale
Loans lssued

Accournts receivable and prepayiments
Mher non-current assets

Current assots

Man-gurrent assets held for sale
Invenlaneas

Accounts recemvable and prepaymeants
Mat investment in leezes

Inwezlmanis available-for-sale

Ingame fax receivable

Loans Egued

Caeh and cash equivalenis

Other current asssls

Totel asasts

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capita

Treasury shares

Surplug from reissuance of ireasury shares

Foreign currency translation reserve

Accumulated dedlcil

Proparty, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

Total equity atiributable fo equity holders of the Company
Mincrily interest

Total aguity

Mon-current Habilities

Loans and borrowings

Deferred tax lakilities
Fost-employment benefits payable
Ciher nan-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Loarms and borrawings

Currant laxes payable

Advances from customers and delerred revenue

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

AZ. Martirosoy

0.V, Grabarovskaya ’
11 December 2009 A e

The accompanying nofes on pages 8-50 are an integral part

Notes

i - I

gk

29

17
24

19
17
14

2008 2007
12,021 ;
749,016 415,880
2,780 ago
3,782 3,074
13,280 5,851
465 104
1,800 2
126,124 47 S84
1dd 1,205
808,413 474 537
15,398 x
72,682 53,7068
210,547 114,565
6,276 4,842
1,987 2,442
3,381 11.313
25,258 30,256
11,534 9,647
34 .

347 107 235,911
1,256,520 710,508
112,145 12,145
{8,815) {B04)
451 451
8,378 26,028
(165,383} B7,915)
336,272 102,357
235,049 172,372
12,774 3,325
297,823 175,687
211 925 196,916
66,390 25,656
4,350 5870
10 1,605
262,665 230,048
116,014 86,195
523,504 175,571
19,144 21,289
18,370 21,767
676,032 304,762
958,697 534,811
1,266,520 710,508

Genaral Director

Chief Accountant

of thase consolidaled fnancial stalements.



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

Caonsolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008
{in thousands of US dollars)

Revenue
Fassenger irafic and hellcopier sarvices revaripe
{Hher revenus

Cperating exponses

Direct operaling exponses
Personnel expenses
Dapreciation and amortisation
Repair expansss
Carnmigsicns

Impairment of doubthsd debrs
Crher cperating income
Ciher cperaling expenses

Operating profit

Financial income

Financial expensas

Med foreign exchange loss

Shara of resulls of associates
Loss an subsidiary dispasals
Criber

[LossVprofit before income tax

Income 1ax benafi
{Loza}proflt for the year

Agiributabile ta:
- equity kolders of he Company
- minarily inferasis

Earmingsqioss) per share (i 531
bask and dilvted (oss)fearnings per share
atiributable o equily holders of the Company

AZ. Martirosow

O.N. Grabarovskaya e i
11 December 20008 St

The accompanying nofes on pages 8-50 are an integral part

Notes 2008 2007
23 1,210,789 874,820
51,870 28,052

1,262,659 902,912

24 (7BE,431) (532, 986}
25 {244 4B2) (177,337}
{60,639) {54,736}

[45,038) (24,043}

(36,65 (28,770}

15 (1,720) 4,487
5.044 1,428

26 (73,115} (40,212
{1,245,340) (858,123

17.319 44,789

27 4 B59 3,680
27 (G4, TE4) {31,472}
27 [63,295) {143)
3,463 1,403

- {2.421)

340 .

{102,058) 15,831

28 4,028 5619
[58,030] 21,458

{101,733) 20,830

29 3,703 G20
o (0.18) 0.04

General Directar

Chief Accountant

of these consolidated financial stafements.
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UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2008

{in thousands of US dollars)

Note 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
{Loss)fprafit before income tax (102,058) 15,831
Actfusfmenis for,
Ceprasiation and armertisation B,632 50,385
Interest éxpenses and fair value adjustiments v 4,764 31,472
Unrealized foreign exchangs diffierences 61,692 .
Cther provislons, allowances and pensions 14, 18, 21 10,740 12,5940
Loss on disposal of property, plant and aquipment 25 7,101 56508
Prowision for doublful debis 15 1,720 4 457
Loss on revalustion of property, plant and equipment 1,310 .
Loss on dispesal of subsidiares - 2421
Aotounts payable writben off [20) -
Share of resull in associates, after 1ax 10 (3.483) 01.403)
Interest incame 27 e {4,053 (3,630}
Cperating cash flows before working capital changes BT.148 118.003
Increase In gccounts payakie, advances end athar payables 25,462 25,156
Incresse in taxes payeble and recaivabla 1,672 5,233
Furchase of non-current assets held for sala 13 (23.931) -
Inzrease in invenlores (31,754} (17,144
Increase in accounts recsivable and prepayments {228,790} [35.244)
Cash {used Inj/generated from operating activities (161,205] 86,004
Income tax gaid (BTE) {8,558)
Interest paid (51,527 (29, 3B5)
Net cash {used inlgenerated from operating activities (223 BOB) &8 060
Cash flows from investing activities:
Short-term Ioans repaid by third parfies 13,1048 3314
Decraasa in net rvesiments in lease 2601 226
Proceeds from sales of investmenils 1,408 1.640
Dividengs received 10 152 1
Proceeds from sales of propery, plant and equipmeant . 871
Interest recaivag - 1187
Investments scouisition (1 (288}
Short-term loans provided 1o third parties (3,640 [37.183)
Acqulgition of share In associstes 1] {6,078} -
Aoquisifion of subsidiaries (13.400) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (118,203} L1565 568)
Met cash usad in investing activities [126,052) {185,604)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings 206,134 418,308
Divigends paid fo minerly sharshoiders {120} [&1)
Dividends paid io equity holders of the Company {3,207 {3,012)
Reoeyment of liability under firance lease agreemeants {5, 106) 3,803
Acquigition of freasury shares 22 E,121) (148)
Repayment of barrowings (533,883 {282 G327}
MNet cash from financing activities 351,747 129,627
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - §a2
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,887 1,623
Cash and sash equivalerts at the beginning of the year 16 D647 B4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 11,534 9,647

A2 Martirosow

Q.. Grabarovskaya
11 December 2008

General Directar

Chief Accountant

e

The accompanying notes on pages 9-50 are an integral part

of these consolidated financial stalements.



UTair Aviation Joint-S5tock Company

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008
{in thousands of US doilars)

1. General Information

The core businesses of UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company (the “Company” or "UTair™) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™} are passenger and cargo transportation
using airplanes and helicopters, helicopter works as well as aviation services. The Group
operates more than 300 machines. Cargo and passenger aircrafl transportation is pericrmed in
Russia, CIS and non-CIS countries, The main customers of helicopter services of the Group are
mainly Russian oil and gas companies, and the United Nations Organisation (UN) cutside of
Russia. The main aviation services are: catering, airport services, aircraft repairs and
maintenancs services, provision of passenger and cargo alr ransporation and aeronautical
personnel traming.

UTair, the parent company, was incorporated as an open joint stock company in the Russian
Federation on 28 October 1982, The registered office of the Company is: 628012, Russia.
Tyumen obxlast, Khanty-Mansiysk, Airport.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company's ordinary shares were owned by

20DE 2007
HName B %wshare % share
La Manche LLS [Aussia) 19.98%  18.89%
Triselico LLG [Fussia) 19.84%  15.84%
Folint LLC {Russia) 18.680%  18.80%
Krapel LLC (Fussia) 17.00%  17.00%
Individuals 14.05%  15.000%
Oither lagal artilies §.30% ¥ Beit
Treasury sharas d.02% 1.41%

The Company has the following subsidianes, which are included into the consolidated financial

statements.
2008 2007
Entity Activity % share %o share
Tranaporations and Services
Fealisation Canbre LLG Tickst sales agency 100.00%  100.00%
UTair Leasing LLC Leasing company 100.00%: 1000
KF Staff Training Centra Stall Teaching and assesament 100.00%  100.00°%
UTair - Cargo CUSC Fraight service 100.00% 10000
Tumenaviatecksnab LLC Celivery of property, plant, equipment and materials 100.00%  100.00%
ChOP Aircraft Security Centre
LLC Aircrall securly seqvice 100.00%  100.00%
UTalr-Fmance LLC Firnanoe services 100,005  100.00%
UTair-Technigue LLC Repeair of aircrafs fleet 100005 100,00%
UTair-La LLC Re=presentative office 100,005 100.00%
UTair-Sarmara LLG Raprasaniative olfice T00L00%:  100.00%
Tobolskawia LLC Airport service 100.00%  100.00%
LTair-Express LLG Aar frangpaonalion 100.00%:  100.00%
Economic Reforms Cendre LLC Irveating activities 100,005  100.00%
UTair Development LLG Finance agency, sale/buying of estate 100.00%  100.00%
fvigtion senaces and maintenance samvica of flaet o
UTair South Alrica (Ply} Lid alrcraft 100.00% 100.00%
Awiation services and mainlenance service of fleet of
UTair Sierra Leone Limited aircral 100.00%  100.00%
LT Project Services Lid. [India) Reprasentalon, agency Senscss 100.00%  100.00%
Wesgl Sib-Capital Limiled
{Cyprus} Investing senvices 10ED0%  100.00%
UTair-Irkutsk LLTC Repreaentation 10R00%  100.00%
Kirensk-Avia LLC Airpor servics 100.00%  100.00%
UTair-Ukraine LLC Air transporiations 100.004% -



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
far the year ended 31 Dacamber 2008
{in thousands of US doflars)

20HHE 2007
Enfity Activity % share % share
Tyurnen General Purpogse
Aircrefl Aesearch and
Production Centre LLC Manuiacture of ilying machinas 100.00%:
UTair India Private Limited
1Inddia) Air transpariations 100.00%:
LG Tywman Civil Avadion Filot
School Educational senmces 100,00% .
Adrpon? Ust-Kut OJS0 Airport senice #E e B5B0%
UTair - Engineering CLUSC Repair and service of aircralt fleat 2T ITBO%n
Aviaticn del Sur 5_4_ [Peru) Aniahion senaces 10.00% -
Wostem-Sdbanian Agency of Air
Communications LLG Tickets sake £1.00%  51.00%
Ukair LLC Adimimesiralive senices E0.00%: SO0
UTGE CJS0 Land sarvics S0.00%  BOU0OA
Ukrainizn Handling Company  Trade in fesl, the organesation of transportaton of cargoss E0.00% 500005
UTair-Europs s.ro. (Skovakia) Aniabion senaces 20.00% 20005

All subsidiarias of the Group are incorporated under the laws of the Russian Federation except
for subsidiaries in South Africa, India, Slovasia, Peru and Ukraine.

In 20CGB the Group incorporated Tyumen Civil Aviation Pilot School LLC, UTair Ukraine LLC and
UTair India Private Limited {India}. In addition, in 2008 the Group acquired a controlling stake in
Aviation del Sur 3.A. {Peru) (Nota 7).

As at 31 December 2008 the Group had approximately 10 thousand employees
{2007: 9.2 thousand). The Group's facilities are based mainly in the Tyumen Oblast, as well as in
Moscow, Syktyvkar, Samara and Ufa. The facilities of the Group's non-Russian subsidiaries are
based in South Africa. India, Slovakia, Peru and Ukraine.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year endad 31 Decembaer
2008 ware authonsed for issue by the Company's Executive Body on 11 December 2009,

2. Basis for Preparation of the Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Imternational Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS"),

Basis of measurement

The consciidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that
certain items of property, plant and equipment are stated at revaluad amount and continue 1o bea
revalued periodically.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparabon of the consolidated financial

statements are described in notes 3.1 to 3.24. These accounting policies have been consistently
applied,

10



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008
{in thousands of US doliars)

3.1 Principles of Consolidation

Subsigianes

The subsidiaries, which are those entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one
half of the voting rights or otherwise has power lo exercise control over their operations, are
consolidated. The subsidiaries are consclidated from the date on which the control is transferred
to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date when the control ceases. All inter-
gompany Iransactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated; unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provices
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where necessary, the accounting policies for
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisition of Subsidianas

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measu-zd initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the Group's share in the identfiable
net assets s recorded as goodwill. If the cost of the acquisition is less than the tair value of the
Group's share in the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the differance is recognised
directly in the income statement.

Increases in Ownership Interests in Subsidianas

The difference between the camying value of the acquired interest in the net assets of the
subsidiaries and the consideration paid for such interest are charged or credited to retained
Barnings

3.2 Investments in Associates

Thea associates are the entities in which the Group generally owns between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights, or is otherwise able 1o exercise a significant influence, but which are not under the
Group's contrel or are under joint control of the Group and third parties. Investments in the
associates are accountad for under the equity method and are initially recognised at cost, including
goodwill. Subsequent changes in the carrying value reflect the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share in the net assets of the associata.

The Group's share in its associates’ profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and
its share in movemanis in reserves is recognised in equity, However, when the Group's share of
loeses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless the Group is obliged to make further payments to, or on behalf
of, the asscciate.

Unrealised gains on the transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interast in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transterred.

3.3 Investments and Other Financial Assets

Financial assets within the scope of 1AS 33 Finencial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held to maturty investmants, or as financial investments available for sale, as
appropriate. Initially, the financial assets are measured al fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attibutable transaction costs. The

11



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008
{in thousands of US doilars)

Group determines the classification of its financial assets at their initial recognition.

All regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within the period generaily
established by requlation or convention in the market place.

Investments classified as held for trading are included in the category "financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, Investments are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term, Gains or losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in income. During the reporting penod, the Group did not hold any investments in this
category.

Non-derivative Fnancial assels with fixed or determinable paymenis and fixed maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has a positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. During the reporting period, the Group did not hold any investments in this category.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried &t amortised cost using the
effectiva intarest method. Gains and losses are recognised in income when the loans and
recelvables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three praceding categories. After the initial
recognition. the avallable-for-gale investments are measured at fair value with gains or losses
being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until
the investment is determined o be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement.

Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instruments are not recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses in respect of debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if
the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an evenl occurring after
the impairmeant loss was recognised in the income statement.

3.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in the balance sheet comprises cash al barks and in hand and short-term daposits with an
original maturity of three months or less.

3.5 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, which are generally shorl-term, are carried at the original invoice amaount less
an allowance for any uncollectible amounts, Allowance is made when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect the outstanding balances,

3.6 Mon-current assets held for sale

Items of non-current assets held for sale, except for land, are measured at lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less cosls 1o sall.

Reguiremenis on consclidation of the assets included in disposal group continue to be applied

after initial classification of this disposal group in a category of the assets held for sale. Thus the
assels held for sale will not be depreciated.
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3.7 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventones is
based on the first-in, first-out principle ("FIFO"), and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them o their
existing kocation and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Aircraft, helicopters, engines, land and buildings

Aircraft, helicoptars, engines, land and builkdings are intially recognised at cost. Foliowing initial
recogrition, they are cared at a revalued amount which is the fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
Group involved Independent appraisers to determing the fair value of aircraft, helcopters, engines,
land and buildings. The mast recent valuation was performed as of 31 December 2008.

A revaluation increase is recognised directly in the revaluation reserve in equity except to the
axtant that it reverses a previous revaluation decrease recogmsed in profit or loss, in which case
it is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation decrease is recognised in profit or loss excepl 10
the extent that it reverses a previous revaluation increase recognised directly in equity, in which
case the raversing amount is recognised directly in equity. The Group does nol recognise an
annual ransfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings for the depreciation relating to
the revaluation surplus, due to impracticability of such a disclosure, When a revalued assat is sold,
the amaount included in the revatuation resarve is transferred 10 retained eamings.

Rotables
Rotables acquired both as a part of aircraft and helicopters and separately are recorded as
property, plant and equipment and amertised according to their useful life (generally 5 years).

Assefs under construction
Assets under construction are recorded at purchase or construction cost.

Impairmert

At each reporting date, the management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of
property, plant and eguipment. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the
recoverable amaount, which is determined as the higher of an asser’s fair value in use less cost to sell
and its value in use.

The carrying amount is reduced 1o the recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as
an expense (impairment loss) in the income statement, An impairment |oss recognised for an
asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used lo delerming
the asset’s recoverable amount.

Deprecialion

Depraciation for aircraft, helicopters and engines is calculated using the straight-line method over
the remaining useful lives defined in years by independent appraisers for each specific aircrafl,
helicopter and engine. The remaining useful life varies from 1 o 23 years.
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Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment groups is calculated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20 to 57 years
Equipment B years
Rotables 5 years
Furniture & years
Vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3 years

Land iz not depreciated.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methads of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, annually,

Accouniting for Major Overhauls

Consistent with 1AS 16 Froperfy, Plant and Eguipment, the Group identities as a separate
component of its aircraft, helicopter and engires, an amount representing major overhaul and
depreciates thal component within the period to the next major overhaul to reflect the
consumption of bensfits, which are replaced or restored by the subsequent major overhaul.
Amounts spent on major maintenance overhauls are subseguently capitalised as a separate
component of an aircraft, helicopter or an engine with a different usetul life.

Repair and Maintenance

Repair and maintenance expenditure is expensed as incurred, Major renewals and improvermnents
are capitalised, and the assets replaced are retired, Gams and losses ariging from the retirement of
property, plant and equiprnent are included in the income statement as incurred.

Borrowing Costs

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment arg
capitalised in the cost of the relevant asset, during the peried of time that is required to complete
and prepare the assel for its intended use. All other borrowing cosls are expensed.

3.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
imangible assets acquired in a business combinabion is initially recognised at fair value as at the
date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carned at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment lossas. The useful lives of intangible
assels are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic lives of 2-5 years and assessed for impairment whenever
thera is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation periods and
methods for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewad at |gast al each financial year-
end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of fulure
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation pericd
or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
gxpense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but lested for impairment annually
gither individually or at the cash-generating unit lavel. The useful lite of an intangible asset with
an indefinile life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment conlinues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the usetul life assessment from indefinite to fintte is made
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on a prospective basis,
3.10 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable fransaction costs, After initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method; any difference between the fair value of the consideration
receved (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised as an adjustment 1o
interest expense over the period of the borrowings.

311 Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior pariods are measured at the
amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are effective as al the financial statements date.

Current tax représents the sum of the income tax payable to the State (recovered from the State)
with regard to the tax income (tax loss) for the pericd determined in accordance with the rules
established by the tax authoriies, according to which the income tax is payable to the State (or
recovarad from the State).

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in aguity and nol
in profit or loss

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the
liakility method. Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising
betwesn Ihe lax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting
purposes, except where the deferred income tax anses from the initial recognition of goodwill or
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transacticn, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the exient that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be ulilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured al tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the lability is seliled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or declared {and
practically adopted} at the balance sheest data,

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences arising on [nvestments in
subsidiaries, assoclates and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
differance will not reverse in the foresesabile fulura,

Deferred incorme fax assets and defarred income tax liabilities are offset, it a legally enforceabla
right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxas rolate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.12 Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group's functional currency is the Russian Rouble ("RURY). Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are inilially
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recognised in the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction.
Mongtary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are retranslatec at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All resulting differences
are taken to profit and loss. Non monetary items that are accounted for in & foreign currency and
measured st historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
fransactons.

The functional currency of the foreign operations is the United States Dellar ("USE"), South
African Rand ("rand”), Slovak Koruna (“koruna™ and the Indian Rupee ("rupee"). As at the
reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are translated into the
presentation cumency of the Group, RUR, at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date and their income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised
in the equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statzment,

On 11 December 2008 the Group authorized and issued its consolidated financial statements as
of 31 December 2008 and for the year then ended prepared in accordance with IFRS and
presented in RUR. The presentation currency of these financial statements, issued as a
supplement to the financial statements prepared in RUR, is USS. As of the reporting dals, the
assats and liabilities of the Group are translated into the presentation currency of the Group al
the rate of exchange ruling at that balance sheet date (31 December 2008: 28.36 RUR for 1 US5
(2007: 24.55)), and its income, expenses and cash flows are translated at the weighted average
exchange rate for the respective year (2008 24.86 RUR for 1 US$; (2007: 25.58)). The equity
items (other than those resulting from income and expenses recognised for the period) are
translated at historical rates of exchange {rate ruling at the transaction date}.

3.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or consiructive obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seftle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a
provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
realised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected value of
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where approgriate. the nisks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increasa in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a bomowing cost,

3.14 Equity

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Extemnal costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares, other than on a business combination, are shown as a deduction from the proceeds In
equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued
i3 recognised also as share pramium,

Treasury Shares

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchases the Company's shares, the consideration paid,

including any attributable transaction costs, net of income taxes, is deducted from equity as

treasury shares until they are cancelled or reissued. No gain or loss is recognised in the income

statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.
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Where such shares are subseqguently sold or reissued, any conslderation received is included in
equity. Treasury shares are staled at weighted average cost.

Minonfy Interast

Minority interest represents the intarest in subsidiaries not held by the Group. Minority interest at
the balance sheet date represents the minority shareholders' portion of the fair value of the
identifiable assetsz and lbilities of the subsidiary at the acquisition date and the minorities
portion of movements in equity since the date of the combination. Mincrity interest is presentad
within the shareholders' equily.

Losses allccated o minority Interest do not exceed the minority interest in the equity of the
subsidianes unless there is a binding obligation of the minarity 1@ fund the losses. All such lossas
are allocated to the Group.

3.15 Revenue Recognition

Operating revenues comprise the invoiced valug of airline and other services, net of any
discounts and taxes.

Revenue from sales of tickets for reqular flights is recognised in the period in which the service is
provided. Unsamed revenua represents tickets sold but not yet flown and is included in deferred
income. It is released 1o the income statement as passengers fly. Unused non-valid tickets which
are not refundable are recognised as revanue,

Sales of other services {cargo, charters, helicopter senvices, airport and technical support
sarvices) are recognised in the period the services are provided.

3.16 Employee Benefits

Post-Employment Benefits

The Group companies provide addiional pensions and other post-employment benefits to their
employees in accordance with collective bargaining agreements. The enlitlement 1o these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age, the
completion of a minimum service period and the amount of the benefits stipulated in the
collective bargaiming agreements, The entitlement to some benefits is conditional on the period
during which the retired reside at the places whera the Group is based,

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of post-employment benefits is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the
plan assets, together with adjustmeants for unrecognised actuanal gains or losses and past
senice costs.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the projecied unit credil method, The
present value of the benefits is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outtlows
using interest rates of high-reliable government bonds thal are denominatad in the cumency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to matunty approximating the terms of the
related obligations,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the income statemeant in the period in which they

accur, The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vestad.
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State Pension Scheme

The Group contributes to the Pension Fund of the Russian Federation as well as Social and
Medical Funds according to the effective official rates, on the basis of the salaries of the
amployess of the Russian subsidiaries of the Group before taxation. Similar contributions. for
other subsidiaries of the Group are made in compliance with statutory requirements of those
countries where the Group's subsidiaries are located, The Group has no legal or conslructive
obligation to pay further contributions in respect of those benafits. The only abligation of the
Group is to pay the said contributions as they fall due. These contributions are expensed as
Incurred,

Other Expenses

The Group incurs employee costs related to the provision of benefits such as medical insurance
and kindergartens. These amounts principally represent an implicit cost of employment and,
accordingly, have been charged to operaling expenses.

3.17 Leases (Group 25 a Lessor)

One of the Group’s subsidiaries is a leasing company which enters into finance and operating
lease agreements as a lessor. The leasing operations within the Group are eliminated during the
consolidation.

Finance Lease

When assets are leased 1o the non-Group companies under a finance lease, the present value of
the lease payments (‘met investment in leases”) is recognised as a receivable. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as uneamed
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment
method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return. The net investment in the lease and the
related cbligation to purchase the asset are recorded when the lease contract is signed. Any
advance payments made by the lessee prior to commeancement of the lease reduces the net
investment in the lease.

Provisions against net investmant in leases are based on the evaluation by the management of
the collectability of the net investment in leases. Specific provisions are made against amounts
whose recovery has been identified as doubtful. The aggregate provisions made as at the year-
end are chargad against statement of income for the year,

Setllernents on eguipment purchased for leasing purposes are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a
raliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Operating Leasa
Payments made under operating leases are charged against income in equal instalments over
the period of the lease.

3.18 Leases (Group as a Lessee)

Finance Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lsase, is based on the subslance
of the leased item and requires an assessment of whether the fuifilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys the right 1o use
the asset.
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Finance leases, which in fact transfer to the Group substanfially all the nsks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair
value of the Izased property or, If lower, a1 the present value of the minimum lease payments,
Lease payments are apporfioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so a5 to achisve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are charged 1o interast expense in the income staterment.

The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assels is consistent with that for depreciable
assets, which are owned, if there is no reasonable certainty thal the Group will obtain cwnership
by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or
its uselul lifa.

Operating Lease

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are not
transferred to the Group are classified as operating leases, Operaling lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the income slatement on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm.

3.19 Government Grants

Govemment grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognisaed as other income over the period necessary 1o malch the grant on
a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates 1o an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the income
statermnent avar the expected useful life of the relevant assal by egual annual instalments.

3.20 Frequent Flyer Programme

The Company records an estimated liability for the incremental costs associated with providing
free transportation under the Status frequent flyer programme (Note 18) when a free air ticket or
upgrade of service class are eamed. Incremental costs include customer service, airport fees,
customer rutrition and insurance. The liability is incleded in trade and other payabies, and is
adjusted periodically based on awards eamed, awards redeemed and changes to the Status
programme. The costs are included in other cperating expenses in the consofidated income
statement.

2.21 Dividends

Dividends are recogrmised at the date they are declared by the shareholders at a general
meeting.

Retained earnings legally distributed by the Company are based on the amounts available for
distribution in accordance with applicable legislation and reflected in the statutory financial
staternents (Mote 22). These amounts may differ significantly from the amounts presented in
accordance with IFRS.

3.22 Financial Income and Expenses

Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested, gains on the disposal of
availatle-for-sale financial assets and changes in the fair value of financial assets at tair value
through profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the income statement, using
the effective interest mathod.

149



UTair Aviation Joint-Stock Company

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008
(in thousands of US dollars)

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on
provisions and changes in the fair value of financial assels at fair value through profit or loss.
Borrowing costs, othar than those capitalised In the cost of construction of a qualitying asset, are
recognisad in the income stalement using the effective interest method.

3.23 Other Operating Expenses

Other oparating expenses comprse expenses that are not directly incurred in revenue
generation. Other operating expenses are recognised in the period in which they occur,

3.24 New standards not yet adopted

A number of naw Standards, amendments to standards and Interpratations are not yet effective
as al 31 December 2008, and have not been applied in preparing these consclidated financial
statements. Of these pronouncements, potentially the following will have an impact on the
Group’s operafions. The Group plans to adopt these pronouncements when they become
affactive.

— 1AS 1 (revised) Presentalion of Financial Statements;
- IFRS 2 {revised) Share-based Payment,
- IFRS 3 {revised) Business Combinalions;
IFRS B Oparating Segments,
lAS 23 Borrowing Costs;
|AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements;
- |AS 32 Financial instruments: Presantation;
— |AS 3% Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
— IFRIC 13 Cuslomer Loyaify Programmes;
- |FRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estfate.

Influence of these changes on the Group's accounting policy is discussed below:

1AS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

Revised IAS 1, which becomes mandatory for the Group's 2009 consclidated financial
statemenis, is expected to have a significant impact on the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. The Standard intreduces the concept of total comprehensive income and
requires presentation of all owner changes in equity in the statement of changes in equity,
separataly from non-owner changes in equity.

IFRS 2 {revised) Share-based Payment

The revised standard clarifies the definition of vesting conditions, introduces the concept of non-
vesting conditions, requires non-vesting conditions 1o be reflected in grant-date fair value and
provides the accounting trealment for non-vesting conditions and cancellations. The
amendments to IFRS 2 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2008 consolidated financial
statements, with retrospective application. The Group has not yel determingd the potential effect
of the amendment,

IFRS 3 {revised) Business Combinations

The revised standard, which comes into effect on 1 July 2008 (i.e. becomes mandatory for the

Group's 2010 consolidated financial statements). The revisions address, among others,

accounting for step acquisitions, require acquisition-related costs to be recognised as expenses

and remove the exception for changes in contingent consideration to be accounted by adjusting

goodwill. The revisions also address how non-controling interests in subsidiaries should be
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measured upon acquisition and require recognising the effects of transactions with non-
controlling intarest diractly in egquity.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 infroduces the "managemant approach” to segment reporting and becomes mandatory
for the Group’s 2009 consolidated financial statements and will require the disclosure of segment
information basad on the internal reports regularly reviewad by the Group's Chief Operating
Decigion Maker in order to assess each segment’s performance and to allocate resources to
them. Currently the Group presents segment information in respect of its business and
geographical segments (Mote 5,

IAS 27 (amended) Consolidaled and Separare Financial Statements

Amended IAS 27 requires accounting for changes in ownership interests by the Group in a
subsidiary, while maintaining contral, to be recognised as an aquity transaction. When the Group
lpses controd of a subsidiary, any interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at
fair value with the gain or loss recognisaed in prafit or loss. The amendments to |AS 27, which
become mandatory for the Group's 2010 consolidated financial statements. are not expected fo
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements

1AS 32 famended) Financial Instruments: Presentalion

Amendments to IAS 32 require puttable instruments, and instruments that impose on the entity
an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on
liguidation, to be classified as equity if certain conditions are met. The amandments become
mandatory for the Group's 2008 consoldated financial stataments, with retrospective application
required. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the amendments,

|AS 38 (amended) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurament

Armendment 10 IAS 38 clarifies how the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or
portion of cash flows is eligible for designation should be applied in particular situations. The
amendment becomes mandatory for the Group's 2010 consolidated financial statements, with
retrospective application required. The Group has not yet determinad the polential effect of tha
amendmeant,

IFRIC 13 Customaear Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 13 was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008 (for the Group: financial statements for 2009). This Interpretation requires
customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration
received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over the period thatl the award credits ara
fulfilled, The Group has not yvet delermined the potential effect of the interpratation.

IFRIC 15 Agreemenis for the Consfruction of Real Estale

IFRIC 15 addresses the accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. IFRIC 15 becomes
mandatory for the Group's 2009 consclidated financial stalements. The Group has not ye!
determined the potential effect of the interpratation,
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4,  Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
4.1 Judgments

in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group determined that the substance of the relationship batwean the Group and UKair LLC,
with & 50% share belonging to the Group, indicates that UKair LLC is controlled by the Group. As
a result, this entity has been included into the Group's consclidated financial statements as at
31 Decembear 2008 and 2007, because this is a special purpose entity.

The Group determined that the substance of the relationship between the Group and UTG
CJSC, with a 50% share belonging to the Group, indicates that UTG CJSC is contralled by the
Group. As a result, this entity has been included into the Group's consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, because this is a special purpose enlity.

In 2007 the Group reduced its share in the Ukrainian Handling Company (Ukraing) from 100% to
50% due to the specifics of the local legislation, Nevertheless, the Ukrainian Handling Company
still remains under control of the Group. As a result, the entity has been included into the Group's
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007,

The Group determined that the substance of the relationship between the Group and UTair
Eurcpe 5.0, (Slovakia), with a 20% share belonging to the Group, indicates that UTair Eurcpe
s.r.0. (Slovakia) is controlled by the Group, As a result, this entity has been included into the
Group's consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, because this is a
spacial purpose entity,

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the management o make
judgmental estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a materal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assels and liabilifies within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Life of Propeny, Plant and Equipment

The Group assesses the remaining useful lives, residual values and methods of depreciation of
items of property, plant and equipment at least at each financial year-end. If expectations differ
from previcus estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate
in accordance with IAS B Accounting Poficies, Changes in Accounting Estimales and Errors.
These estimates may have a material impact on the amount of the carrying valuss of property,
plant and equipment and on depreciation recognised in the income statemeant.

impairment of Property, Plant and Equiprment

The Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be

impairad. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's fair value less

costs to sl and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
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not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the assal is
considered impaired and s written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the astimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assets.

The determination of impairment of property, plant and eguipment involves the use of estimates that
include, bt 2re not limited 1o, the cause, timing and amount of the iImpairment. Impairmeant is basad on
a large number of factors, such as changes in current compefitve conditions, expectations of growth in
the industry, increased cost of capital, changes in the future availability of financing, technological
obsolescance, discontinuance of service, current replacement costs and other changes in
circumstances that indicate impairment exsts.

The determmation of the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit volves the use of estimales by
the management. Methods used to determing the value in use include discounted cash flow-bassd
methods, which require the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rats in order to cakoulate the present value
of those cash flows. These estimates, including the methodologies used, may have a material impact
on the fair value and uiimately the amount of any property, plant and equipment impainmeant.

Fair Values of Unlisted Available-For-Sale Investments

The fair value of investments thal are aclively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance
sheel date. For investments where there is no active markel, fair value is detarmined using
valuation technigues. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions,
reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation medels. These valuation techniques are based
on assumptions that are not supported by cbservable market prices or rates. The management
beliaves the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technigue which are recorded in
tha balance sheet and the related changes in the fair values recorded in the statement of
changes In equity are reasonable and the most appropriate at the balance sheet date.

Frovisions

The management maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to account for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of custormers lo make required payments. When evaluating the
adeguacy of an allowance for doubtful accounts, management bases its estimates on the aging
of accounts receivable balances and historical write-off expernence, customer credit worthiness
and changss In customer payment terms. I the financial condition of customers were 1o
deteriorate. actual write-offs might be higher than expectad.

The Group makes an allowance for obsolete inventones. Estimates of nel realisable value of
inventories are based on the most reliable evidence available at the tme the estimates are
made. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to
events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date 1o the extent that such events confirm
conditions axisting at the end of tha pericd.

Post-Employment Benefits

The Group uses the actuanal valuation method for measurement of the present value of post-

employment benefit obligations and related current service cost. This involves the use of

demographic assumplions about the future characteristics of current and former employees,

rates of employee turnover, disability and early retirement, the possibility for former employees to

reside in the regions whare the entiies of the Group operate, ele. as well as financial
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assumptions {discount rate, future salary).

In the event that further changes in the key assumplions are required, the fulure amounts of the
post-employmaent benafit costs may be affected materially. More details are provided in Note 21.

Legal Claims

The Group exercises considerable judgment in measuring and recognising provisions and the
exposura 1o contingent liabilities related to pending litigations or other outstanding claims subject
to negotiated setlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as ather
contingent hakilities, Judgment is necessary in assassing the likelihood that a pending claim will
succeed, or & lability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the final setidement.
Because of the inherent uncerainties in this evaluation process, actual losses may be different
from the criginally estimated provision. These estimates are subject o change as new
information becomes available, primarily with the support of inlemal specialists, it available, or
with the support of outside consultants, such as actuaries or legal counsel. Revisions to the
estimates may significarty affect future operating results.

Curren! Taxas

Russian tax, curency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations and changes
acourning fraquently. Further, the interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the
transactions and activity of the Group's entities may not coincide with that of the management. As a
result, tax authorities may challenge transactions and the Group's enliies may be assessed
additional taxes, penalties and interast, which can be significant. The periods remain open to review
by the tax and customs authorities with respect to tax liabilities for three calendar years preceding the
year of review. Under cerain circumsiances reviews may cover longer  periods.
As at 31 December 2008 management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation Is
appropriate and that it is probable that the Group's tax, currency and customs positions will be
sustained. More detalis are provided in Mote 31,

Deferred Tax Asseis and Liabilities

The managament's judgment is required for the calculation of current and deferred income laxes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that their utilisation is probable. The utilisation
ot deterred tax assets will depend on whether it is possible to generate sufficient taxable incoms
in respective tax type and jurisdiction.

Various factors are used to assess the probability of the future utilisation of deferred tax assets,
including past operating results, the operational plan. expiration of tax losses carmed forward,
and tax planning strategies. |f actual results differ from these estimates or it these estimales
must be adjusted in future periods, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the Group may be nagatively afiected, In the event that an assessment of future utilisation
indicates that the carrying amount of deferred tax assels must be reduced, this reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair valuas of Assels and Liabilities Acquired in Business Combinations

The Group recognises separately, at the acquisition date, the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired or assumed in the business combination at their tair values, which
involves estimates, Such estimates are based on valuation technigues, which require
considerabie judgment in forecasting future cash flows and developing other assumptions. More
details are provided in Note 7.
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4.3  Impairment of Financial Assets

A financial asset is assessed at each raporting date to determine whether there is any objective
avidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considerad 1o be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amontised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an
available-tor-zale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for imparrment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognisad in the income statermnent. Any cumulative loss in respect of
an available-for-sale financial assel recognised previously in eguity is transferred to the income
slatement.

An impairment lose is reversed if the revarsal can be related objectively 1o an event occurnng
after the impairment loss was recognised, For financial assets measured at amortised cost and
available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognised in the
income statement. For aveilable-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is
recognised directly in equity.

5, Segment Information

The Group's primary reporting format is business segments and its secondary format is
geographical segments. The business segments are structured and managed separately
depending on the services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different services and serves different markets.

The Group is organised into fwo main business segments: passenger traffic and helicopler
sarvices. The major pan of the passenger traffic segment is represented by regular flighis. The
major part of the helicopler services segment s individual (charter) flights. Other operations of
the Group mainly comprise airport senvices, technical support and repairs of air fleet, none of
which are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

The technical suppaort and air fleet repairs are provided from the other operations segment to the
passengar traffic segment, Transfer prices between business segments are set by mutual
agreaments of the parties involved in these fransactions.

Unallocated costs reprasent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and sguipment and receivables, Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as taxation and certain corporate borrowings. Capital expenditure compnses
additions to property, plant and equipment. Impairment loss and provisions relate only to those
charges made against allocated assets.
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The table below summarises the information on income and profit, as well as asseis and
abiliies related to the Group's business segments:

Passanger Helicopter Redained
2008 traflic SRTVICES Oiher amaounts GEroup
Oiparating revenss B22 Bds 361,524 78,250 1262 850
Inter-esgment zabec [47.08H) {71.542) 118,630 - -
Cipareting profivi{iozs) [-38,080) 201,173 18715 (16:3,500) 17,219
Tolal assats 368,140 5RG.B43 17.028 310,409 1,266,520
Total abilithes V128.9689) {23.513) [2E,818) [F7E5TT) {958,697
Capital expendiluras 04 578 66,513 - 19,625 180,520
Depreciation and amormisalion (22 &5098) {28 6598, - 19, 244) (B, 538,

Passanger Helicoptar Retained
2007 traffic SETVICES Qiher amaunts Group
Diperating revenis o8 427 265,963 A6, 022 202,812
Irter-eegment salas (16,880} (23,050, 38,8970 - :
Oparating profivloss) 15,558 84077 (30.630) (34 157) 44785
Tolal assats 181 248 184,704 15,458 16,102 710,008
Taolal Babilities (82 945} (9.026) (17 ,953) (423 588) (534,811}
Capital expenditures 71413 47,012 - 24,427 148,852
Cepreciation and emodisation 120,378} (20,804 19, 206) {50,38E}

Secondary Reporting Format - Geographical Segments

The Group's two business segments operate mainly in Russia. In addition, the Group provides
helicopter transpeortation services outside Russia (in Republic of South Alrica, India, Slovakia,
Peru). Sales revenue is attributed to the geographical area in which the customer is located.
There were no sales betwean the segments,

2008 FAussia  Non-Russis Group
Crparating revenua 1,048 T34 215,825 1,262,669
Cparaling expanses (1,132,004) (106,788)  [1,238.883)
Unallocaled operaling expenses - - (G457}
Cperating profitf{loss) {85,360 109,136 17,319
Total asssts 1,063.073 193 441 1,256,620
Cagpital expendilures 151,036 23,484 180,520
2007 Russia Mon-Russia Group
Ciparaling revenua 74T 4593 155,418 k2 912
Dperating expenses {641,713} (91,180 {72 a5
Unallocated operating expenses - - {125,230}
Oiperating profit 10, TED 4,234 44,780
Total aszels 634,860 7hG4a 710,508
Capital expendiuras 140,360 8,403 148 852

B. Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

In accordance with 1AS 24 Related Parties Disclosures, parties are considered to be related i
one parly has the ability to contrel the other party or exarcise significant influence over the othar
party in making hnancial or operational decisions, |n considering each possible related parny
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not. Transactions
between related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as
transactions between unrelated parties.
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For the purpose of these financial statements, the following related parties were identified in

accordance with 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosuras:
- parties which exercise joint contral or significant influence on the Group;

asgsociates, Le. enterprises in which the Group has significant influence and which is

neither a subsidiary nor a party in a joint venture of the investor,
- key management personnel,
- ather.

The outstanding amounts due from related parties were as follows as at 31 December:

20408 2007
Trade recelvanies (Mot 15)
Erities wilh joint coming or signiicant muence over the Grogp 2,010 3,148
Associales a2m7T 625
4,827 3,673
Frapaymems MNafe 15):
Eriities with joint corrod or significant mfluence owver the Group 555
dzsociates 4 28
4 623
Long-tarm accounts recaivabla:
oy rhamacpermant pessonms (matunng bafore 31 Decambess 2008) - 1248
- 128
Cbwer (N 15)
Erifities wilh joint corred or signiicant muence cver the Groug . a0
Agsoriabes 121 -
Keny managemenl personns i -
122 20
5,053 4,444

The outstanding balances are interest free and short-term, except for where it is specifically
noted. Most are related to rendering of transportation services to the related parties. The
outstanding balances are neither guaranteed nor secured. The settlements are performed in
cash. Mo doubtiul debts due from related parties existed as at 31 December 2008 and as at

31 Dacemipar 2007 .

The Group also had cash balances of LS5784 thousand (2007 US$144 thousand) held with
entities exercising joint control or significant influence over the Group as at 31 December 2008.

The outstanding amounts duea to related parties ware as follows as at 31 December:

2008 2007
Trade accouwls payable (Mofe 19).
Erdities with joint cordral or sigralicant influance cwer 1he Grows 3,863 1,560
Agsociales 2232 2.532
Lither = ar
6,055 4113
Advances received (Mote 20).
Erdties with joint control or sigreficant influence cver the Groug 172 142
Associates B2 145
Key management personnel - -
T84 2a7
Loarns payabls (Nate 17):
Enritiea with point corirol or signiicant influence cwer the Group 107,118 22,290
107,110 22 2940
Other {Note 18]
Related pames which jolnily cantrois or hawve 5 significant iefivence o fhe Group a7 -
Aesociates 4 -
Key mansgement personms| 2 -
293 -
114,252 26,696
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Thare were the tollowing related party fransactions in 2006 and 2007:

2006 2007
Sale - franspadabion Sendaees
Entithas with joint contnol or significant influence over the Group 76,553 71,384
Associales 4,320 6,060
Key management personnel 3 Z
Ciner - 7
BOBTE T7.620
Other sales:
Erdilies wilh joint corrol or signficant influancs ower The Groug
Asaociates 2 541 =
Key manzgemeant personid: 248 =
Cthar 1
2,780 -
Total sales to related parties B3, 666 77,520
Dirpct operahing expenses:
Enfities with jond control or significant rdleerce oaer the Group 123,526 87,218
Associates 28 302 33,568
Caher - 1,083
151,828 132, BG4
Oiifver oparaling expenss,
Entifias wilh joint condrol of significan inlluence over the Grouws 11,771 451
Associales A g1
12212 532
Imlprest expemses on loans payate (MNoba 271
Entfties with joint cordrol or sigrificant influence owe 1he Groug 3,285 1,247
Total purehaszes from related parties 16T, 526 134,641
Frovesds from foans amd bomowarngs.
Entities with joint comrol or signilicant mblueence over the Group 148,521 70,566
Repaymend of loans gnd borrowings:
Enlities with joind control or significant nfluence over thi Group (30,354} (52, 64
MNetl proceeds of barrowings from related partios a7 567 17,202

In 2008 the Group concluded agreements with related parties aboul repayments of loans and
borrowings amounted to US$148,521 thousand. The loans outstanding as at 31 December 2008
are secured by property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of US59,126 thousand, notes
issued by the Company, and also legal claims of cash inflows collectable under the existing
contracts and guaranties of Group companies.

Compensation fo Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel compnsed directors, members of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Council. The total compensation to key management personnel is reported under
personnel expenses of the consclidated income statement in 2008 and amounied to
LIS56,950 thousand (2007; USS3.862 thousand). Compensation to key management personnel
consists of the contractual salary and performance bonus depending on the achieved operating
results.

Transactions with related parties are made on contractual bases.
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7.  Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
Acquisition of Aviacion del Sur S.A. {Peru)

On 12 Juna 2008 the Group acquirad 70% of voling shares in Aviacion del Sur 5.A., a Peruvian
campany rendering helicopter transportation services in Peru.

Taking control of Aviacion del Sur S.A. will enable the Group 1o gain access to the Central and
Latin American helicopter fransportation market,

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2008, Group revenue for the year would have been
US%51,270,6489 thousand and the net loss for the year would have been US$97.452 thousand. In
determining these figuras it has been assumed that the fair valug adjustments at 1 January 2008
would have been the same as the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of acguisition.

The acquisition of the =ubsidiary had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities at
the date of acquisition:

As al the dale of
acquisition
Irmeertarles 6,351
Property, plart ard eguipment 4,324
Trade and other receivabbss; prepakd expeness 24096
Cash and cash equivaloenls 44
Ceferred tax labibty i142)
Lerngg-term accounts receivable and prepaymeanis [ 2id )
Minarity intarests (880)
Trade acoount paable (7.808)
Fair value of net assets 4,706
Consideration pasd 13,448
Cwferred considaration 5,285
Goodwill 14,038
Cash oulflow on acgursitan,
Met cash acquired with the subsidiary 44
Cash paid (13445
Met cash outflow {13, 400)

The differsnce between the fair value of net assets acgquired and the consideration paid is
accounted for as goodwill in the consclidated balance sheet Since the date of acquisilion
Aviacion del Sur S.A. contributed net profit of US54,261 thousand to the Group's net loss.
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8.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Rotables,
aircraft,
Lerd and halicopter Assels under
buildings and engines Other construction Tatal
Cost
31 December 2007 121403 331,350 70,568 25,594 544,005
Addilicns £, 111 160,831 11,602 1.928 180,520
Additions throwgh acquisition of
CoOmpanies &h2 10,845 1,020 12 227
Disposals [3.810) {3,435} (53195 (1,537] (13,801)
Effect of translation to US$ {20,485) {20,876) (12777} [4,268] {118,428
31 December 2008 104, DE1 418,776 55, 083 21,785 608,725
Revaluation 116,679 184,079 : - 309,758
I Decomber 2008
{afler revaluation) 223,740 G2 855 63,093 21,795 513,483
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2007 (9,183) (77,918) {46,035} {133,138)
Actrugd deprecialion for the percd 43, 714) (48,977 (7322} {60,018}
Accurmukaled depaedalon of property,
plant and equsprment, threwgh acguisilion
of companiss (117 (7 ATE) [GH} 8,203
Disposaks 593 7aa 3.577 4,902
Effect of franglation i USE 2,15 21,704 B.269 31,988
31 December 2008 (13.411) {111,837) (42,119} - [ M,-‘-‘lﬁf}
e Bk vaile
31 Decermber 2007 112,230 253,452 24,523 25,554 415 BEY
31 December 2008 213,324 490,818 22,974 21,795 745,016
Rotables
aireraft,
Land and helicopter Agmels under
buildings and engines Other  construction Talal
Cost
31 December 2006 106,558 #32.506 56,253 18,267 413,625
Ackditions 5,630 124,425 11,123 6.674 148 B2
Additions through acquasilion of
COMpanes 1,374 - 344 - 1,718
Disposals [1,257) (4,101) i1.677) {B22) (7.HET)
Digpasals through desposal of
COMpansss - (43,515) - . 143.515)
Effect of tranalation 1o LISS 8,087 22,035 4,515 1,575 36,212
31 December 2007 121,403 331,350 70,558 25 694 545, M5
Accuriidaled dapreciation
1 Decermber 2006 {4,232) (35, 884) [3%,510) - e
Accrued depreciation for the period {4.818) (41,180 (4,288) (50,080
Cisposgls 162 487 B 14808
Cispopeals through disposal of
CoOmpanies - 3,296 . 3.258
Eftet of translation o USS 1495 14.6149) |3, 0200 8,134}
31 December 2007 {8, 183) [F7,918) {46,035} {133.138)
fet book valuie
A1 December 2008 102,267 106, 822 16,743 10267 337,599
31 Decembar 2007 112,320 253 432 24,523 25,694 415,869

As at 31 December 2008 the cost of tully depreciated property, plant and equipment was
LIS829.028 thousand {2007; USS37,955 thousand).
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Expenses capitalised in propery, plant and equipment in 2008 amounted to
US332,776 thousand (2007: US$29,187 thousand).

Mo interest was capitalised during 2008 due 10 the absence of qualifying assels for such
capitalisation in accordance with the Group accounting policy

In 2008 the Group commissioned Consulting Company Expert LLC, a third parly appraiser, to
independently appraise the Group's aircraft, helicopters, engines, land and buildings as at 31
December 2008, In accordance with the Group's accounting policy these items of property, plant
and equipment are accounted for at fair value (Note 3.8).

As at 31 December 2008 the fair value of aircraft, helicopters, engines, land and buildings as at
31 December 2008 was detarmined to be USEBESY.6 million, of which WSS537 million was
primarily determined based on the market comparison approach (also referred fo as sales
comparison appreach), This approach considers sales of similar or substitute properties and
related market data, and ostablishes a value estimate by a process involving comparison;

« with an identical object which is being sold in a secondary market;

= with a similar object which is being sold in a secondary market using adjustments, if there Is
no identical object; or

« with new analogous equipment using adjustments for depreciation in the absence of a
secondary market,

The fair value of the remaining items of properly, plant and equipment of US$120.6 million was
determined based on depreciated replacement cost. This method considers the cost o
reproduce or replace the property, plant and equipment, adjusted for physical, funclional or
economical depreciation and obsolescence.

As at 31 December 2008 property, plant and equipment with a camying value of US$251,458
thousand (2007 USS112.081 theusand) is pledged as collateral against bank borrowings
{Mote 17).

Operating Leases

The Group has entered into cperating lease contracts for a number of fixed assels: bulldings,
installations and aircraft (frames and engines). These leasas have an average life of 3 to 5 years
with no renewal option inclueded in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the
lessae by entenng into these leases. Operating lease obligations are disclosed in MNote 31.

Finance Lease

In 2007 the Group entered intg aircrafl lease agreements under which it has a bargain option to
acquire the leassd assets at the end of lease term of eight ysars. The estimated average
remaining useful ife of leased assets varies from 10 to 15 years. As at 31 December 2008 the
carrying value of an aircraft already used by the Group under finance l|easa was
US583,5931 thousand (2007: US5%15,884 thousand). Finance lzase obligations are disclosed in
Mote 31,

a, Met Investment in Leases

The net investment in leases resulting from the long-term finance lease agreements entered by
the Group as a |lessor through its subsidiary comprise the following:

a1
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Gross invastment in leases
Liss: unizarmead fnance lease incomea

Mel investment in leases

2008 2007
12,527 10,246
12 468 (2 150
10,058 8,066

The interast rate incremental in the lease agreements varled between 9% and 14% per annum
(2007: 9% and 14% per annum) depending on the total amount and duration of the contract as
well as other terms. The amounts receivable under the lease agreements are securad by the

azzels leased oul,

Gross investments in leases are paid in RUR, The maturity structure of the net and gross

imvestments in leases is detailed as follows:

2008 2007 L

Gross Ml Gross Hat

investments investments |nvesimenis invesiments

Lesa than 1 year 7841 5276 6,335 4,502
1 ta 5 yaars 46845 a.7a2 381 3074
Total 12,827 10,058 10,246 8,066

As at 31 December 2008 assets leased out with the net investment value of US$6, 363 thousand
{(2007: US53,201 thousand) have been pledged as collateral against bank borrowings (Note 17).

10.  Investments in Associates

The Group holds investmenls in the following associates:

2008 2007
Associate Business activily share {%) share {%)
Arrport Surgul CJSC [Russia) Abrpoat facilities and senioes 26.0% 260
Kondavia CUSC {Aussia) Ainport facilities and aemices 45,5%% 45 5%
Mefteyuganekiy Aviaotnyad OUSC (Fussia) Transporation services 24.4% .
The moverments in investments in associates were as follows:
2008 2007
Ag at 1 January 5,851 4.508
Acquisition of an associate £.978 -
Gam on acquisition of an associates 4 566 .
Share of (loss) profit belore ases 1999) 1,403
Share of tax benefil{expense) 172 (246)
ahare of {loss)/prodit after taxes (827} 1,057
Dwidends recemved from associales (152) 181]
Effect of translaticn o LISS 13, 136) 367
A5 at 31 Decamber 13,280 5,851
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The following table llustrates summarnsed financial information on associates!

Aggregated assets and liabilities of agsoclates ) 2004 2007
Curnent a8sets 17,033 11122
Worm-cirment assats 53,640 15,042
Current liahilities {14,805 i4,334)
Mon-current liabilities {6,836 155)
Met assets 49,044 2,775
Hevanie 103,882 44 453
reet (loss)profis after tax [3, 646} 4,008

In April 2008 the Group acquired 24.4% of voting shares in Nefteyuganskiy Aviaotryad OJSC, a
company located in the town of Nefteyugansk, Russia, specialising in passenger transporiation
sarvices by helicopters and helicopter works. The acquisition was settled in cash.

The tair value of tha identifiad assets and liabilities of Nefteyuganskiy Aviaotryad OQJ5C as at the
acquisition date were as follows:

Az at the date of

seguisition

Propery, plant &nd equipment 55312
Trade accounte receivable and olher accounis recewable 5005
Invenicriss 1.581
Infamgible assels a3
Diher non-cuirent assets 1%
Cash and cash equivalents g
Char shori-term liakdlibes (18}
Trade payables (2861}
Shori=term lpans and borrowings 4,245}
Deferred tax lizbidty 18,572}
Fair value of net assels 47, 310
Acquired share of net assels 11,544
Consideration paid 15,97 8)
Gain from acguisition of associate 4 566

11. Investments Available-for-Sale

As at 31 December 2008 long-term available-for-sale investments of the Group amounted to
US5486 thousand (2007 US$184 thousand) and consist of investments in ardinary shares of
unlisted Russian companias with no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

Short-term evailable-for-sale investments as at 31 Decamber are as follows:

2008 anor
Promeggsony noles 1.081 E
Partecipatony constrection contracls 906 L
Investments in ordinary shares o unlisted Fassian companies 5 1.448
1,987 2442

12, Loans issued

As at 31 December 2008 long-term loans amounting to US$1,800 thousand (2007: Nil) are
denominated in USS, bear interest rate of 8% per annum and mature before 10 June 2013.
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As at 31 December 2008 short-term |oans amounting to US$25,258 thousand (2007:
US530,256 thousand) are denominated in RUR, bear interest rates of 10% o 12% per annum
and mature before 31 Decembear 2008,

13. Mon-current assets held for sale

MNon-current assats hald for resale mainly comprise threa Mil Mi-171 helicopters and engines for
them that have been purchased by the Group for resale,

Froperty,

plant and

agquipmeant

held for sale

Ag at 31 December 2007 -

Achclilions 23,931

Cisposals (5,723

Effect of trenslation o LSS [2.804)

Ag at 31 Decamber 2008 15,308
14.  Inventories

2008 2007

Spare parts A G20 28,430

Fuil 20, THD 1720

Chhes inventories 14,063 11,963

On-board goods for resals Firi ) 1,335

Allowance for impairment 16,854) [5.223)

72,662 531,706

As at 31 December 2008 inventories of US$24 833 thousand (2007: US$30,353 thousand) have been
pledged as collateral against borowings {Mote 17).

15. Accounts Receivable and Prepayments

2008 2007
Long-term receivables and prepaymants
Prepaymenis under operaing easss (Nobe 31) 10,087 A% GED
Advances fo supplers 16, TEG -
Other long-term trade receivables B2 7058
Prepayments under finance leases (Note 31) 2 1,357
126,124 47,984
a¢08 2007
Shori-term receivables and prepaymenis
Trade receivablos B9 BAE B, 2440
Adhvances 10 suppliers Gh 589 24 A58
Prepayments under operaiing leases (Mote 51) 15,5549 6,563
VAT recowerable 10,752 8,08
Caher taxes recenable 10045 4317
Related partess recsvables (Mobe 6) 5053 4,444
CAher receivables - claims 2600 4,261
Dilerned axpenses 1818 2,580
Prepayments under finance leases (Mote 31} - 2712
CMher accounts recelvable 18,892 10175
Less:
Prawision for impairment of trede receivables [2,50E) [3.554)
Provwision for impairmesd of cther receivables and advancss [7.411) {6,403
210,547 114,555
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As at 31 December 2008 the Group entered into an agreement to purchase thirty-soc Mil Mi-8
helicopters for the tolal contract amount of USS239,565 thousand (Note 31). The helicopters ane
expected to be subsequently resold. Advances amounting 1o US$52,147 thousand have been
paid by the Group in relaticn to this agreement.

As at 31 December 2008 trade receivables of L5574, 515 thousand (2007: US547,113 thousand)
are denominated in foreign currency, mainly US%.

The following table surmmarises the changes in the provision for impairment of trade and other

receivables as at 31 December:

2008 2007,
1 Jenuary 9897 261
Uzed during the year (3, 368)
Charged during the year 1,720 4,487
Effact of franslation inlo LISE {1.910) a4 7
31 December 5,807 9,997
16. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2008 __anov
Bank daposil 6,502 B.575
Foreign currency denominaled balances with banks 4,740 1,022
Oithier 212 50
11,534 9647
17. Loans and Borrowings
2008 2007
Short<term loans and borrowings:
Sberbank OJ3C i BUIA; secured) 144,135 £0.363
Khanby-Mangisky Bank OJS0 {in BUR; secured) 86,525 46 785
Amsterdam Trade Bank WY iin USE; sacured) B8,527 .
Bank Rossis CUSC iin RAUR; securad) 25,527 ]
WTH Bank OJ3C {in AUA; sedured) 24,501 12222
Sibirgazbank T4S0G tin AR, secured) BE7 .
Relaled pani=s (Mole 6] {in AUR; securad) &0.411 -
Ciher {in US%; secured) TETT 185
Long-term debi, current poartion:
Skarbank S0 lin UE% and Eury; secured) 8,262 T.073
VTE Bank OJSG {in AUR; securad) 1,161 1.906
Akkobank OJEC {in AUR; securad) Fidi] 951
Ala Bank (2S5 [in AUR; securad) 292 =
Falaled parties (Mote 6) [in AUR; secured} 5,059 7038
CHhar 196 -
Finansg lease obligations (Note 31) T.387 2,120
Fromissony notes iin RUR; unsecurad) 6155 a2z
Bonds [&) {in RUA; sacured) 34,036 =
523,504 175,571
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2048 2007

Long-term dabl, nen-current partion:
Sbarbank CUSG (im LSE and Euro: secured) 111,363 40,136
VTB Bank QUS0C iin RUR; secuned) &0 4,269
Akkobank QS0 iin RUR; securad) - 1,770
Alfa Bank OJS0 {in AUR; securad) 235 .
Felated paries (Nofe &) {in AUA; secured) 11,740 15252
Dither 242 21
Finance lease cbligations {Mate 31) 4712 13.6594
Promissory nofes (im RUR; unsecurad) 134 106
Bords (k) {im FUR; securad) 13,110 121_666
211,825 166,914

Loans and borrowings are secured by the following:

= Property, plant and equipment {Note 8); and
« [nventories (Mote 14).

Tha finance lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets [Note 31).

Interest rates payable on these loans vary from 7% to 18% for RUR denominated loans and from
5% to 11.32% for US$ and Eurg denominated loans. A debt repayment schedule of interast
bearing borrowings is presented in Note 32,

{a)

(b

On 14 March 2006 UTair-Finance LLC, the Group’s subsidiary, issued 1,000,000 interest
pearing, non-convertible bonds (Issue Mo, 4-02-36059-R), with a par value of 1,000 RUR
per bond and a maturity date of 10 March 2009, The bonds were issued at par value. No
premature redemplion to these bonds is permissible. Coupon payments are made on a
quartery basis {12 times). The interest rate for the first to fourth coupon periods was
10.4% per annum; for the fifth 1o gighth coupon periods — 9.85% per annum; and for the
ninth to eleventh coupon period — 10.4% per annum. As of 11 December 2009 all bonds
peraining to this issue have been redesmed {Nole 33). The bonds have been guarantesd
by the Company.

On 19 December 20068 UTair-Finance LLC, the Group's subsidiary, issued 2,000,000
interest bearing, non-convertible bonds (lssue No. 4-03-38059-R}, with a par valua of
1,000 RUR per bond and a maturity date of 14 December 2010. The bonds were issued at
par value. Coupon payments are made bwice a year (8 times). The interest rate for the first
to fourth coupon periods was 10.4% per annum. Further coupon payments wera made in
2008 {Note 33), The bonds have been guaranteed by the Company,

Unutilised Borrowing Facilities
As at 31 December 2008 the Group had no unused credit lines (2007 US%3,665 thousand).
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18.  Current Taxes Payable

2008 2007
‘abue Added Tax payable 715 £.903
Addilional allocatons to the Slate Fension Fund 4 376 4618
Persenal income tax 1,052 942
Froperly tax 1,008 =
Linifiad socal fax ada 1,372
Incoimes jax HHE -
Road users tax i =
Creterrrad Yalue Added Tax - &1
Dther taxes and fax provisions 1,161 3,036
19,144 21,229
19. Trade and Other Payables
2008 2007
Trade payables 60812 45,215
Unused vacalion accrual 18,643 17,314
Accrued Sabilties and oiher crediioes 12,460 5.0a47
Accrued payroll 11,682 12,387
Payables 1o related paries [Mote 6} G568 4,115
Dividends pavable 2014 286
Frequent Flver Programme Labilibes 1,833 1,247
Short-term portion of the employes benafitg (Molz 21) 183 LG
115,014 86,185

As at 31 December 2008 trade payables of US$14,122 thousand (2007: US$12,666 thousand)
are denominated in foreign currency, mainly in USS,

20, Advances from Customers and Deferred Revenue

Advances from customers are comprised of the following!

2008 2007

Deferred revenue [air ralhic liability} 12 676 13,608
Advances from cuslomers 4,500 7. 7B2
Advances from relaled pares (Mote §) o4 287
18,370 21,767

Advances from customers include the amounts received for transportation services to be
rendered. The air tratfic liability represents the value of tickets sold and still valid but not used by
the balances sheet date as well as interline amounts received from other carriers.

21. Post-Employment Benefits

The Group companies provide additional pensions and other post-employment benefits to their
employees in accordance with collective agreements. Deafined benefits consist of lump-sum
amounts payable at the retirement date and certain regular post-retirement payments. These
benafits generally depend on years of service, level of compensation and amount of pansion
payment under the collective bargaining agreemeant. The Group pays the benefits when they fall
due for payment.

The components of naet benefit expense recognised in the consclidated income statemant for the
years ended 31 Decembar 2008 and 2007 and amounts recognised in consolidated balance
shaets as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

a7
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20HB 2007
Liabllities as a1 1 Januwary 6,436 2857
Benelit expensa (¥4 3.359
Benelits pakd (257) 227}
Effect of tranclation to US% (9055 a47
Liabliities sz at 31 December, including: 4,533 6436
nEn-CUrrent part 4,350 5.870
current part {Naote 19) 183 HiEE

et benafit axpanse (meiuddd n persanmal cosis)!
Current senicd cost 13 184
Pasl service cost 7 115
Imerest expenae on benefit liabilities L20 206
Wet actusrial {lossespigains recognised in year 11.851] )
Met post-employment benefit (gainlexpenses (741} 3,359

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining benefit liabilties are presented in the
table below:

2008 2007

B B.25%-

Discount rata 2.00% 6.75%

Ayarage long-term payroll increase rate B.OS £.5%

Employee urnover rale 1-21% 1-21%*
Frobabdlity of & non-working pensioner residing wihera the Group companies ang

lozated A0 0

' bagad on ihe sctusral modsl davaloped and dependeg on e@Eenance, Jendsr and age.

The following table is a summary of the present value of the benefit cbligations and experience
adjustment=s as at 31 December, Experienced adjustments were calculated only for the parent
company of the Group.

2008 2007
Liabikities as at 31 Decmnber 2,503 T.676
Experiencs adjusiments (367 [BTE]
22. Equity
The total nurber of outstanding sharas compnses:
Mumbser of
autstanding Mumbar of Premiums or
ordinary freasury discounts aon
shares shares Share Treasury shares transactions with
____(thousand) {thousand) capital at cost  ireasury shares
Ag at 31 December 2006 558,409 8,790 112,145 545 202
Purchase of treasury shares {314] 214 - 148 -
As al 31 December 2007 568,095 9113 112,145 G 202
Purchase of ireasury shares {14,075 14,078 . &, 121 :
As al 31 December 2008 554,018 23,182 112,145 6,815 202

As at 31 December 2008 the number of authorised ordinary shares amounted to 577,208,000
(2007: 577,208,000) with a nominal value of 1 RUR per share, All authorised shares have been
issued and fully paid.

Treasury shares represent ordinary shares held by the Company or by Group subsidiaries.

a8
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A dividend of US$0.001 per ordinary share (2008: US%50.228) was declared in June 2009 in
respect of 2008 to the holders of ordinary shares for the total amount of US3742 thousand
(2007; USE5,566 thousand).

In accordance with Russian legislation, dividends may only ba declared to the shareholders of
the Group from accumulated undistributed and unreserved sarnings as shown in the Company's
Russian statutory financial statements.

On 31 December 2008 the Company had undistributed and unreserved eamings of
US$32,179 thousand (2007: LUS$H42,084 thousand) reported in accordance with the Russian
slatutory financial statements. In addition, the Group's share in undistributed and unreserved
eamings of the Group subsidiaries amounted to US$7.936 thousand ({2007
UsS%23,633 thousand).

The Company's shares are listed on the Russian Trade System ("RTS"} and the Moscow
Interbank Currency Stock Exchange ("MICEX") and on 31 December 2008 traded at USS50.082
per share {2007: USS0.633 per share).

23. Revenue

2008 20407
Ajrcrafl transportalion senices, redgular T2 018 1z 428
Helicopters iransportabon services, aproad 215825 155,418
Helicopters transportation services, indand 145,508 110, O
Aircraft transportation services, charer 03,826 TE 824
Ajrpart services 13,707 12129
Technical suppen and mainlenancs services 12,714 2,801
Oihar revensas 51,870 28, 0a2

1,262,658 a02.512

Grants from the regional government weare provided to the Company for the execution of regular
flights to the several Russian regions, The grants are provided both in the form of cash
remuneration to cover the Company's losses from perdorming such flights and in the form of
reduced airport duties efc. Since 2005 the Group takes part in & new regional programme where the
Group sells tickets at a discount to passengers fying within the Tyumen and other regions. This
discount is reimbursed by the regional govemment. The amount of reimbursament received in 2008
amounted to USS16,085 thousand (2007: US$11,670 thousand) and is included in regular aircraft
transporabion services ravenue,

24. Direct Operating Expenses

D08 2007
Ajrpar Senvices 147 198 110,578
Rent of air et and eguiprent a0 50,074
Epare pars and other maternsls 57.114 55232
Passenger senacing 48,343 321N
Air navigation and meteosarvices 41,167 26, 856
UM mission suppor T35 G410
Frequent theer programmiz expense [36 232
Oither dirgct aperating GRpenses 36.855 24,230
Direct oparating expenses axcept fual 413.Mm5 305,733
Fuel expenses _ATEA16 22T 233
TA9.4311 532,868
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25. Personnel Expenses

2008 2007
Femurration 162.655 108,523
S0l Fsurancg changes 36,443 27 057
Travel expenses 34,992 23,081
Accruals for vacabon and bonuses 8.693 9913
ket post-employment benefit (gain Mexpenses (741} 3,359
Ciher social payments 1.432 5404
244,482 177327
26. Other Operating Expenses
2008 2007
INSuUFANCS Sxpenses 7638 5,508
Consutfing, audit and legal sxpensss 7474 3827
Lo=s on disposal of propary, plant and egquspmaznt 7.0 55059
Takes B 5584 7961
Training expenses 6. 154 3,156
Bank charges 6067 2245
Adwartisang 5624 3,205
Communicalion expenses 5.108 3,955
Prics year taxas additionally charged 4073 -
Lilities 3230 3488
Cther operating expanses 14M2 224
73,115 40,212
27. Financial Income and Expenses
Financial income includes:
204 2007
Int=rest on loans issued to thind parties 4,075 3448
Lrrmwimdding of fair value adjusiment on long-terrm acoownls receivable TEE -
G fraen perations with third pary promessory nobes 16 23
4,858 3,680
Financial expenses include:
2008 2007
Interest on bank laans 53,411 13,138
Interest/discounts on promissony nobes 3,488 2212
Interest on loans from related pardies (hote &) 3,285 1,241
Interest on bonds esusd 165 12852
Interast on finance keases 4,355 a8
Fair valug adjuslmont on |-l Seoounis secevable - 1,991
&4, TE4 31,472

In the last quarter of 2008 the RUR sharply depreciated against the USS and Euro. Due o the
fact that, as at 31 December 2008, the Group USH and Eurc denominated liabilities substantially
exceaded the assets denominated in those foreign currencies (MNote 32), the Group incurred
large foreign exchange losses. The total net fareign exchange loss incurred in 2008 amounts 10
US563,295 thousand (2007: USS148 thousand).
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28. Income Tax Benefit
2008 2007
Currant fax axpense:
Cumrent income lax expense 7 256 6,023
Underprowviged in pricr periods 2 856 i
10,112 6,023

Defarred tax Gansfit
Crigination and reversal of lemporary dlfarence (159,997 (3, 15m)
Charge inlax rate 3,144 -
Lifilssation of previously unrecognised tax loss carny-forsard: - (8434}
Changs in unrecognissd temporany diference 2713 -

{14.140) {11,642}
Income tax benefit {4.028) {5.619)

Reconciliation between the income tax expense reported in the accompanying financial
statements and income before taxes multiplied by the slatulory tax rate of 24% is as follows:

2008 e 2007 %
{Loss)profit before taxation (102, 058) 1581
Thaoretical tax {benefil)/charge al atatutory rate of 24% i24,494) 24% 5,799 24%
Tax affect of ftems witich are ol deduclitde or assassabla for
I5XaN0N PLIDOSEs.
Changes in income tax rate from 24% to 20% 304 {31%) -
Currént income tax related 1o previous penods 2856  {2.B%) -
Tax losses on which delerred tax was not recognised 2713 {2T%) . -
Mon-deductable expenges 12,050 {11.5%) 1,334 2,4%,
Irffuence of profits taxable at higher tax rate B8 {0.1%) (203 1.8%)
Mon-taxable losses on sales and socquisiton of subsidiares - - 587 7%
Deterred Lax losses . . 12.561)  [16.1%}
Mon-taxable inoome (373 0.4% . .
Conzolldated income tax (benefitiiexpense {4,028) 3.8% 2,866  14.1%
Litilisation of préviowsly unrecognised deferred tax asset * . (3.485) [53.6%]
Consolidated income tax benefit {4,028} 3.8% 5.619] [35.5%)

Effective from 1 January 2009 the Russian corporate profits tax is reduced to 20%. The new rate
nas been used during the calculation of defarred tax assets and liabilities.
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Duborred Dedarrad
tax tax
Oifferences  labilities Differences latibties
recognised relabed o Effect of recogniged Diferances mekated o Effect of
through  purchase fransiatl through recognised  purchass  transla-
31 Digx I oeme of onto 31 Dec incomea thraugh of fonta 31 Dec
2008 slatemenl subsidiary USE 2007  sialement aquity subskdiary USs  HI0ng
Tax effpcis of
deductibie lemporany
devEnCss,
Fraperty, plant and
equipmean T.613 (5,877} 20z 1,538 11,973 124y I
Trade and ather
receivablas 2687 AGE 214 3387 12,752) {130} 4B
Trade and ather
payabies 4,484 4 288 RO B 29 ES 11,538} 7816
Invanksnes 1,202 |43k BE 1,245 2,914 {54 3500
Crbar G423 137 45 74 9,185 [1,533) 8,378
16,538 {1.128) 1,154 16,563 7503 - {a,870) 20,187
Tax plfocls of kaxcabio
VT aRy
aerances.
Property, plant and
auipmant (41,837 4 56 (347 IRER2) [A0BTH 18,689 |BE, 754) 3,845 (75,130}
Trada and allisa
receivabias - - - 19,350 i 1,440 |7A10)
Olher {1,335 {3 1] B4 (1,349 11 - (142 248 1237
41178 FRT 347y {2,006 [42,215) 0,350 [56,794) (142} 5,534 (64,371
Mal 1ax stiast of
lemporany diferances (26.534) FA57 1347y (1,832) [25,656) 16,853 (86, 794) (14} 1,655 (54084}
LESS unrecognised
dlered lax asse (B, 2424 B 445 {243 [2.713) - 417 (2296}
Tovlal nel delerred
tax labiiiy {34 BTE) 11,648 1347y (2,075 (25 654) 14,148 (86, 754) (142} 2,072 (8380}

In the context of the Group's current structure, tax losses and current fax assels of a company
may not be offset against current tax fiabilities and taxable profits of ancther company and,
consequently, taxes may accrue even where there is a net consolidated tax loss. Therefore,
deferred lax asset of one subsidiary of the Group is not ofiset against deferred tax liability of

anaother subsidiary.

Deferred tax assets of USE2.296 thousand have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
carried forward because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

29.  Minority Interest

As at 1 January
Share m revaluation resense

Share of nei income of subsidiarias

Acguisition of subsidiany cormpany
Less drackencis cestributed fo minariby shareholders

Aoquisition of minoaly mterest e subsidiary

Efiest of tranalation 1o LISE

&g gt 31 December

30. Earnings per Share

008 2007
3,325 3,507
5425 =
3,703 620
&80 205
(1209 [B5]

- {1,471}

(443} G55
12,774 3,325

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income atiributable 1o ordinary shareholders
by the weighted average number of cordinary shares in issue during the period, excluding the
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average number of ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held as freasury shares
(MNote 22).

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted earnings per share
equal basikc earnings per share.

2008 2007

Wdghted average number of outsianding ordinary shares [housands) 577,208 £77 208
Adjusted for welghted average number of treasury shares (thousands) ___\15,163] 18,956]
Weighted average rumber of outstanding ordinary shares {thousands) 561,045 558,252
(Lossipralit far he year ~[1,733) 20,830
Basic and dilufed (loss)learnings per share (US3) 18 0.04

31. Contingencies and Commitments

Operating Environment of the Group

The Group's principal assets are located in the Russian Federation and therefore its significant
operaling risks are related fo the activities of the Group in this cou ntry.

The Russian Federation has been experiencing political and economic change that has affected,
and may conlinue fo affect, the activiies of enterprises cperating in this environment
Consequently, oparations in the Russian Federation involve risks that typlcally do not exist in
other markets. In addition, the recent contraction in the capital and credit markets has further
Increased the level of economic uncertainty in the environment. The consolidated financial
statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Russian business
environment on the operations and the financial position of the Group. The fulure business
environment may differ from management's assessment.

Taxation
The major part of the Group tax expense relates to taxation in the Bussian Federation.

Russian tax, currency and customs legislation 1s subject to varying interpretations and changes
occurring  frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the
transaction and activity of the Group may be challenged by the relevant regional and federal
authorities. Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the lax authorities are
taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments and as
a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have nct been challenged in the past
may be chailenged. As such, significan! additional laxes, penalties and interest may be
asgessed. 1 is not possible to determine amounts of constructive claims or evaluate probability of
their negative outcome,

Fiscal perods remain open 10 review by the autharties in respect of taxes for three calendar
years preceding the year ol review, Under cerain circumstances reviews may cover longer
periods

As at 31 December 2008 management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legistation is
appropriate and that it is probable that the Group's tax, curency and custormns peositions will be
suslained.

Management’s eslimale of Ihe amount of polential liabilities that can be subject 1o different
interpretations of the tax laws and regulations and are not acerued in the accompanying financial
statements could be up to approximately US$15.8 million {2007: US$18.3 million). Management
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balieves that it is not probable that the ultimate outcome of such matters would result in a liability.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2008 the Group had contractual commitments to purchase property, plant
and equipment for USE312,581 thousand (2007: US$10,730 thousand) of which US$67 564
thousand (2007: US$HE.624 thousand) has bean advanced,

Insurance

The Group maintains obligatory insurance policies required by the Russian Law and insurance
policies in respect of cerain assets pledged under loan agreements. The Group holds insurance
policies in relation to its air fleet, cockpit personnel and in respect of public liability resulting from
its ransportation activities,

Legal Proceedings

In 2008 the Group was involved in a number of courl procesdings (both as a plaintiff and a
defendant) arising in the ordinary course of business, According to management, there are no
current legal cases or other claims outstanding which could have a material effect on tha result of
operations or financial position of the Group and which have not been accreed or disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements.

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee

The Group has entered into several operating lease contracts. The period of these leases varies
from one tc seven years with no renewal rights. The following table provides information on the
Group's future minimum lease payments under the leases as at 31 December;

2008 2007

Within ne yaar TiLE4E 34,496
After ore vear but nal more than five years 186,165 51.547
More than five years 21.5359 10, 5380
288,250 105,623

As at 31 December 2008 the Group had cperating lease contracts denominated in both USS$ and
Eure amounting to US5173,503 thousand {2007: US$48,992 thousand) and US$164 thousand
(2007: Nil), respectively.

The Group operates runways owned by the Russian Federation as well as some ather {mainly
aesronautical} equipment. The runways cannot be privatised in accordance with Presidential
Decree 2284 of 24 December 1993, The Group entered into lease andior gratuttous use
agreements with ragard 10 the runways and equipment for the period of 50 years with the Stale
Property Management Commitiees of a number of regions of the Russian Federation. The Group
also leasas the land plots, on which the runways are located, from the Russian Federation for the
period of 5C years.

Upon expiration of the runways lease agreements the property reverts to the Siate; however the
Group has the priorty right to extend such lease agreements. The agreements may be earlier
terminated upon mutual agreament, upon a court's decision or by virtue of law,

Such lease agreements do not provide for any rent payments. In retum, the Group has o provide
due rouline maintenance and current repairs 10 the rented runways to maintain them in good
working order,
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The substantial upgrades and reconstruction of the leased infrastructure objects are recognisad
under property, plant and equipment of the Group and depreciated over their respactive usaful
lives or the remaining lease term, whatever is shorer.

Finance Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

As at 31 December 2008 the Group has entered into a finance lease agreement under which six
aircraft have been recaived (Nole 8) for the duration of eight years with subsequent transfer of
ownership o the Group on the expiry of the agreement, including a purchase option. Tha
minimum future lease payments under the agreement as well as the present value of the
minimum lease payments are presented in the following table:

2008 2007
Fresent value Present value
Minirmurm af paymants Minimum  of payments
payments (Mote 15 payments {Mote 17)
¥Within one year 14 BR7 7387 3.B82 2120
After ona year but nof more than five years &0, 820 38157 10,429 E7T0
hare than Five yaars 3A,B05 35,555 7 BHE 6,908
Tedal minimum lease paymeants 114,702 82,0 21,977 15,818
Legs; futura financial charnges {32,603) {6,155}
Discounted value of minimum lease
paymenis 82,0849 15,818

As at 31 December 2008 the Group has no plans to prematurely exarcise the purchase option,
32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's princigal financial instruments comprise bank loans, bonds and promissory notes,
accounts payable and finance lease obligations. The main purpose of these financial instruments
ig to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents and deposits, which arlse
directly from its operations.

The main risks arsing from the Groups financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk,
liguidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The information below shows susceptibility of
the Group concerning each of these risks. The Group management reviews and agrees policies
tor managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market Rizsk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices, will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is 10 manage and control the Group's
potential market risks exposure while oplimising the return on risk

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate changes affect the market value of financial agsets and liabilities of the Group and
the level of finance expenses, The Group's policies concerning interast rate risk management
comprise risk reduction concurrently with the attainment by the Group of a finance structure,
which was determined and approved pursuant to the plans of the management. Borrowing
requirements of the Group's companies are pooled by the Group's central finance depanment in
order 1o manage net positions and enhance the finance porttolio consistently with management's
plans while maintaining a level of risk exposure within prescribed limits.
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The Group borrows on both a fixed and floating rate basis. Ficating rates are based on LIBOR,
EURIBOR and MosPrime rates as well as set up for regular coupon periods of bond loans based
on current market conditions in accordance with the lerms of issue documents.

As at 31 December 2008 the share of the Group's liabilities bearing a floating interest rate
consttuted 16.4% of the total liabilities (2007: 42%)

The table below shows the analysis of sensitivity to possible change in interest rates [dus to
loans and bomowings with floating rate), with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
protit betora tax. Such changes do not impact the Group's equity.

Effect on profit
before income
% points tax
2008
LIS% denominaled borrowings, increass by 3 (1,192}
USE denommmated borrowings, decrease by {301 1182
AUR denaminated borrowings, increase by Atk [3.702}
AUR denomenated borrowings, decrease by {30) 3,702
2007
LUES denominated borrowings, increass by alk [202]
L&S denominated borrawings, decrease by 130 202
AUR denominated borrowings, incresse by 20 {3620
RUR dencminaled borrowings, decrease by 1) d.620

Fuel Price Risk

The results of the Group's operations may be significantly affected by the fluctuation of jet fuel
prices, which is a major expense of the Group. Due to the lack of an acceptable hedging market
for fuel prices in Russia, the Group does not have financial instruments to hedge the fuel price
rigk. The major instrument to mitigate the fuel price risk is conclusion of direct contracts with fuel
suppliers, thus receiving significant savings in fuel expenses of the Group.

The Group's profit betore tax sensitivity to possible jet fuel (aviation kerosene) price changes,
with all other variables held constant. is presented in the table below. In estimating possible
changes the Group used tha fuel price trend over a threa-year perod prior ta each balance sheet
date.

Effect on profit
bafore income
a Liax
2008
Fuel price increasze by h (19,0246)
Fuel prce increase by 25 (95,130
Fugl pesce dacrease by {5) 19,026
Fugl price decroase by [28) 95, 130
2007
Fuel price increasze by h (11,782)
Fuel price increaze by 25 (58.912)
Fuel prce decrease by 151 11,782
Fuel peice decrease by (25) SEO12

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed o currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group's subsidiaries. The
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currencias in which these transactions primarily are denominated are the Euro and the USH.

The Group seeks to bring its financial liabilities in foreign currency in line with export net sales,
thus mitigating currency risk. The Group does not have formal arrangements to mitigate foreign
exchange risks of the Group's operations. The increase in foreign exchange losses in 2008 was
due 1o the appreciation of the USS against AUR to 29.38 on 31 December 2008 from 24.55 per
1 US§ the year before as significant Group’s financial liabilities are denominated in LSS

The Group's exposure to currency risk determined as the net monetary position in respective
currencies was as follows at 31 December;

2008 EI:HJ_?'_
USD/RUR (114,771)  (4.080)
EUR/AUR (56,793) (4,045

The Group's profit before tax sensitivity to possible exchange rate changes, with all other
variables held constant, s presented in the table below, In estimating possible changes the
Group used the volatiity of foreign exchange rates during the three years preceding each
reporting date,

2008 2007

Effact on profit Effect on profit
before income Exchange before income Exchange
tax rale change fax rale change
USD/AUR 10% (13,567 3% (118)
LSDYAUR 20% (27, 133) 6% [236)
USCYAUR 110%) 13,567 (3%} 118
USCYAUR 1208 $7,133 (6%} 2368
EURAUR 0% (6.794) 3% (116)
EUR/AUR 20% (13,580 8% (233
EUR'AUR 1108z 6,704 (3%} 116
EUR/AUR 120%) 13,580 (6%} 253

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity nsk is the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient
liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Group's reputation,

The Group manages liquidity risk by targeting an optimal ratic between equity and debt capital
consistent with the management pians and basiness objectives. This enablas the Group to
maintain an appropriate level of liquidity and financial capacity as 10 minimise borrowing
expensas and 1o achieve an optimal profile of composition and duration of indebledness. The
Group has access to & wide range of debt instruments at competitive rates both in the capital
markets and bank sector and coordinates relationships with the banks centrally. At present, the
Group beliaves that it has access 1o sufficient funding and has also both commilted and
uncommitiad barrowing facilies 1o meet currently foreseeabla borrowing requirements,

Effective management of the liquidity risk has the objective of ensuring both availability of
adequate funding to meet shor-term requirements and due ohligations and a sufficient level of
flexibitity in order to fund the development plans of the Group's business, maintaining an
adequate finance structure in terms of debt composition and maturity. This implies the adoption
of a strategy for pursuing an adequate loan portiolio {(particularly availability of committed
borrowing faciliies) and the maintenance of adequale cash,
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments, including interest payments:

On Less than Mare than
demand Amonths 312 months 1105 years 5 years Total

At 31 December 2008
Interest bearing
borrowings 402 115,556 407,546 176,637 35,258 VA5 429
Trade and afher
payabdes 2.714 48,405 43 453 401 g R ERGE
Taxes payabla 19144 - : . - 19,144
Other fmancial labilities - - 5 703 3.657 4,360

22,260 183,962 451,039 177,741 38,945 B73,947
A 31 December 2007
Inlarest bearirg
Earrawings - 4.354 171,217 173,327 23,50 272,489
Trade and olher
payables 1.0 45 261 34 BE4 - . BH. 195
Taxes Fayabls 21,229 . - - - 21.223
Chher financial liabilities - . . 4437 3,038 7475

23,294 49,615 211,081 177.764 26,620 487.383
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential exposure of the Group to losses that would be recognised if
counterparties failed to perform or failed to pay amounts due. Financial instruments that
potentially expose the Group to concentralions of credit risk consist primarnily of cash, trade
accounts receivable and advances issued to suppliers and contractors.

The credit risk arising from the Group's normal commercial operations is controlled by each
operating unit within Group-approved procedures for evaluating the reliability and solvency of
gach counterparty, Including receivables collection, The analysis of credit risk exposure is
performed at the Group level according to set guidelines and measurement technigues to qualify
and monitor counterparty risk.

As at 31 December 2008 accounts receivable from the Group's major debtor amounted to
US$33,429 thousand (2007: USE21, 625 thousand ). Management detarmines risk concentration
by reference 1o a percentage of receivables from particular customers to the total accounts
receivable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk Is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets, which is
disclosed balow.

2008 2007

Trace and olher receivables 113,807 T0.936
Long-term accounds receivable &,27H 7058
Short-term loans given 25,258 50,256
Cash and cash eguivalents 11,534 0647
Lang-terrn loans issuad 1,800 -
160,677 126,897
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The ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is presented in the table balow:

2008 2007
Carrying Carrying

walue  Impairment valus _ Impairment
Trade and other recafvables = no due 104,185 - 60,265 .
Trade and other receivables - overdue 25,215 (7 255 25435 (7,707
Lass than 30 days 12 584 . 11.858 -
Frarm 30 to 60 days 2158 - 3874 -
Frarm &0 1o 150 days 37a : 1,586 -
Cwver 150 days 7005 (7,205} 7,707 {7.707)
129,380 {7 205) &, 701 {7.707}

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensura that it maintains a strong
credit rating and hesthy capital ratios in order o suppon its business and maximise
sharsholders value. The Board of Directors reviews the Group's pedformance and establishes
key performance indicalors.

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent company. The Group
manages its capital structure and adjusts it by dividend payments to shareholders and purchase
of treasury shares. The Group monitors the compliance of the amount of statutery general
reserve and makes approprations of profits to this reserve. in addition, the Group monitors
distrnbutable profits on a regular basis and determines the amounts and timing of dividend
payments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of financial instruments, consisting of cash, short-term and long-term
investments, short-term receivables and payables, long-term receivables and payables and
snort-term and long-term loans payable, approximately equals their fair value,

Financial instruments the carrying value of which is different from their fair value are presented in
the table below:

20408 2007
Falr Carrying Fair Carrying
walue value _value value
Long-ierm eccounis recevable & 27A 9581 T.058 O, 0659

The fair value of the interest-free long-term accounts receivable was calculated based on the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at the prevailing interest rate, applicable on the
date of receivables arising, which amounted to 9%.

33. Subseguent Events

in March 2009 the Group redeamed its 4-02-36053-F bonds of 1,000,000 thousand RURA issued
on 14 March 2006, along with the last twelith coupon related to these bonds of 25,930 thousand
RUR {USS 748 thousand).

In June 2008 the Group pald the fifth coupon in relation to its bond issue 4-03-36059-R dated
19 December 2006. The interest rate for the fifth coupon period was 16% per annum and the
total amount of coupon paid amounted to 50,009 thousand BUR {US$ 1,610 thousand), giving a
yield of 79.78 roubles (US3 2.57 thousand) per bond.
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In December 2009 UTair-Finance LLC made a decision to set the interest rate for the seventh
and eighth coupon periods at 14% per annum in relation to its bond issue 4-03-36055-R dated
18 Dacember 2006, Effective from June 2008 bonds issued by UTair-Finance LLG carry tha A1
raling. The rating has been issued by MICEX.

In May 2009 the Group made a decislon to open a credit line of USH102,670 thousand at
Sberbank of Russia. The purpose of the credit line is to fund the modemisation and expansion of
the Group's fieet.

In June 2009 a dividend of US$ 0.001 per ordinary share was declared in respect of 2008 to the
heolders of ordinary shares for the total amount of USSE 742 thousand.

In June 2008 the Group established UTair = Murmansk LLC, a new subsidiary of the Group. The
new subsidiary’s core buginess will be aviation transportation and services.

In Auwgust 2008 UTal--Finance LLC, a group subsidiary, received the A {high level of
creditworthiness) rating from the Expert RA Rating Agency.

In September 2009, UTair-Ukraine LLC received a license 1o operate as an airling in Ukraine.
Effective from December 2009, three new routes have been commissioned flying from three
Ukrainian cities 10 Moscow, In addiion o regular and charter flights, UTair-Ukraine LLC also
carries out aircrafl maintenance.

In December 2003 the Group reduced its shareholding in Alrport Surgut ©JSC to 18%,

Subsequent to the report penod o November 2009 the Group borrowed funds of 2,336,800
thousand RUR, US$165,874 thousand and 5,575 thousand Euro. In addition, during the perod
the Group issued promissory notes for the total amount of 1,122,607 thousand RUR. The funds
will be used 1o finance the modernisation and expansion of the Group's fleet and to support the
Group's working capital. Included in the indicated amounts are lcans of US$98,620 thousand
borrowed from West-Siberian Bank of Sberbank of Russia for 5 years which will be used to pay
tor helicopters ordered from Ulan-Ude Awviation Plant QJSC. In the same period, the Group
repaid US5215,504 thousand nominated in roubles, US$101,740 thousand and 5,102 thousand
Eurc and redeemed promissory notes of US392,172 thousand.

In 2009 the Group entered into lease agreements with Chitalla Investments Lid to lease three Mil
Mi-171 and eight Mil Mi-BAMT helicopters. In addition, a lease agreement was signed with PL
Panorama Leasing Lid pertaining to seven Boeing B737-500 aircraft. All of the machines have
bean raceived fo-date.
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